
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 26, 2009
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on February 26, 2009, at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Smith called the February 26, 2009 Board of Commissioners Meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the invocation.
Chairman Smith led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the agenda as published.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The
motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Alex Smith


Chairman Smith and the Commissioners recognized and commended Eagle Scout Alex Smith for attaining to
the rank of Eagle Scout, thanked him for his contribution to Fayette County, and presented him with a letter of
recognition.  Alex thanked Fayette County for the opportunity to serve and also thanked his parents for their
support.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.







Minutes
February 26, 2009
Page Number 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Ms. Alice Jones: Ms. Alice Jones, a resident of Fayette County, spoke in favor of constructing a community center for
Fayette’s young people and senior citizens and gave reasons for building a community center. 


CONSENT AGENDA:
Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-7 and was seconded by Commissioner Hearn.
Chairman Smith asked for Consent Agenda Item 2 to be removed from consent for discussion.  Commissioner Horgan
amended his motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-7 with the exception of Consent Agenda Item 2.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the amended motion.  The motion passed unanimously.


1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to close capital and CIP project accounts and move remaining
funds to the contingency account.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to move funds from individual department budgets to the county’s
Contingency Account and to provide additional funding to the Election’s Department.  Specified funds
were identified during the mid-year budget review as areas were a cost savings can occur.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of the Sheriff’s Department’s request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal
Investigation Division by $5,459.73 for reimbursement of employees assigned to work with various
Federal agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of a request from the Sheriff’s Department to authorize the execution of tag and title
documents for acquisition of four (4) new vehicles to be purchased with Federal Seizure funds.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Library’s Donation Revenue Account and the Books and
Materials Expenditure Account by $2,000 in order to recognize a donation from the Fayette County
Board of Education.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend an existing contract with Hanson Aggregates, referred
to as Bid #657 Gravel and Rock, from March 30, 2009 to March 30, 2010.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioner Meetings held on February 4, 2009 and February 12,
2009. 


Consent Agenda Item 2: Chairman Smith said the reason he asked for Consent Agenda Item 2 to be removed for
discussion was because there was a revision of the cost savings indicated in the agenda package, and he asked
Finance Director Mary Holland to explain the revision.







Minutes
February 26, 2009
Page Number 3


Ms. Holland reviewed the request as submitted in the agenda package before informing the Board that the Sheriff’s
Department was able to augment their cost savings by $39,375 after it completed a separate review of its budget.  She
stated that with the additional cost savings identified by the Sheriff’s Department, the aggregate savings identified by
all County departments was $1,645,140 in the General Fund.  She noted that the Sheriff’s Department also provided
additional information related to a capital project for $5,328 that was already included in the Capital Projects listing
Consent Agenda item.  In conclusion, she requested that the Board approve staff’s recommendation to transfer the
various cost savings identified by individual departments to the Contingency Account.


Commissioner Frady moved to approve staff’s recommendation to move funds from individual department budgets to
the county’s Contingency Account as provided and discussed.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Chairman
Smith thanked Ms. Holland,  County Administrator Jack Krakeel, and the Constitutional Officers who understand the
economic situation the nation and Fayette County are facing and have made an effort to freeze and reduce expenditures
“to this extent”. He said it was a testament to the fact that they are cognizant of what is happening and they are working
together to help Fayette County in these economic times. The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS:


B. Representatives from TDK have requested a hearing with the Board of Commissioners concerning a
request for tax refunds.  This request was last discussed at the January 22, 2008 Board of
Commissioners meeting.


The representatives from TDK did not appear for the hearing they had requested before the Board of
Commissioners.  Before County Attorney Scott Bennett reported that staff was recommending TDK’s request
be denied, he mentioned that he spoke to representatives from TDK who indicated they might abandon their
appeal but did not submit a formal request to abandon the appeal.


Commissioner Maxwell moved to deny TDK’s request for a refund due to the lack of a representative from TDK
being present.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


C. Consideration of a request from Fayette Senior Services to allow them to expand the use of their site
to include a therapeutic garden.


Executive Director of Fayette Senior Services Debbie Britt, Landscape Designer Tim Martin of Andy’s Nursery,
and Fayette County Master Gardener Susan Stewart spoke to the Board about expanding the use of their site
to include a therapeutic garden, the people who would benefit from the garden, where the garden would be
located, the type of plants in the garden, and how funds would be raised to pay for the garden. 


In response to questions from the Board, Ms. Britt stated that the proposed plans were what Fayette Senior
Services actually  wanted to build, described how the garden would look and where it would be located, assured
the Board that the garden  would look “absolutely beautiful” and would be like a park, that it was realistic to
expect the garden to be constructed in about four to six months, and that it would be maintained by Fayette
Senior Services, Master Gardeners, and other volunteers.  The Commissioners thanked Fayette Senior
Services, and Mr. Martin, for their work on the project.







Minutes
February 26, 2009
Page Number 4


Commissioner Frady moved to approve Fayette Senior Services’ request to expand the use of their site to
include a therapeutic garden.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith thanked Mr.
Martin for the work he has accomplished, and thanked the representatives for all their hard work by continuing
to improve the situation.  He noted that it was admirable that they were able to make improvements without
asking the Board for funding.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


Shredding of Nonessential Records: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reported that the Building and Grounds
Department completed the process of shredding approximately 38 tons of outdated and nonessential records about 10
days ago, that Fayette County’s records are now consistent with the State’s Retention Schedule, and the County was
able to save approximately $5,000 in various elements of the records shredding process.  He thanked the Building and
Grounds staff for all their hard work in this effort. 


Chairman Smith commented that while the records were being consolidated some “ancient minute books and tax
records” were discovered.  He said those records have been microfilmed, copied, and given to the historical society for
historical value.  He added that some of the records were much older than his grandfather would be, and he thanked
the staff who recognized the records and saved them for historical value.  He asked Mr. Krakeel to extend the Board’s
appreciation to the staff who recognized and saved the historical documents.  


Recreation Program and Youth Associations Policies and Procedures Manual: County Administrator Jack Krakeel
reported that he Recreation Program and Youth Associations Policies and Procedures Manual is about to be completed,
should be available for consideration in two weeks, and will be brought before the Board in early April.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


Update on Eco-South Incorporated Contract: County Attorney Scott Bennett reminded the Board that during the
February 12, 2009 Board of Commissioners Meeting and Eco-South Incorporated contract was discussed pertaining to
a specific mitigation site known as the Johnson tract.  He reported that he has been in contact with Eco-South’s
representatives, that they have reached an understanding, and the understanding is being put into contract form.  He
did not anticipate any problems and said once the understanding is in contract form he will bring it to the Board for
approval.


Approval of Q.T. Contracting Incorporated Contract: County Attorney Scott Bennett reminded the Board that it had
approved Bid #P684 for the installation of an air-conditioning unit for computer equipment in the Fayette County
Administration Building and the Fayette County Jail, contingent upon the contractor gaining certification to work on the
specific type of equipment.  He stated that certifications have been met and the contract is ready for approval.


Commissioner Maxwell moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the contract with Q.T. Contracting, Incorporated, doing
business as Powers Heating and Air, in the amount of $92,395.62.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the contract, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.







Minutes
February 26, 2009
Page Number 5


STAFF REPORT


There were no staff reports.


BOARD REPORT


First Manassas Mile Road: Commissioner Frady reported that a member of the Fayetteville City Council approached
him earlier in the day and spoke to both him and County Administrator Jack Krakeel about diverting traffic from First
Manassas Mile Road since that road had a lot of heavy truck traffic that passed by two schools.   He suggested that
Fayette County’s property located on S.R. 54 could be used for a street that would work to divert traffic, and he added
that the City of Fayetteville might be able to provide financial assistance with the construction of the road. 


He asked for the Board’s consent authorizing the County Administrator to conduct an analysis which would include cost
estimates and funding sources on the property and to return with a report to the Board as early as possible.
Commissioner Hearn asked that the study also distinguish who would “carry the ball” in terms of doing the engineering
work since that preliminary work would need to be accomplished before anything else, and that the work could be
expensive.  Commissioner Frady also suggested that a traffic signal would also have to be included at S.R. 54.  


Chairman Smith directed County Administrator Jack Krakeel to follow through with the Board’s request.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


Real Estate Acquisition and Litigation: County Attorney Scott Bennett reported that real estate acquisition and
litigation items needed to be discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Horgan moved to adjourn into Executive
Session to discuss real estate and litigation items.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion passed
unanimously.


The Board adjourned into Executive Session at 7:44 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:20 p.m.


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Hearn moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session
Affidavit stating that real estate acquisition and litigation items were discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner
Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified
as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Chairman Smith asked for the record to reflect that the Board was made aware of a potential litigation item and a real
estate acquisition item, that no action was taken in the litigation item which was for information only, and that staff was
instructed to proceed in the real estate acquisition item.







Minutes
February 26, 2009
Page Number 6


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner Hearn moved to adjourn the February 26, 2009  Workshop Meeting and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  The motion passed unanimously.


Chairman Smith adjourned the February 26, 2009 Board of Commissioners Meeting at 8:21 p.m.


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk            Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12th day of March 2009.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
     March 12, 2009


    7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Craig Gross, Cooperative Extension Coordinator for the Fayette County
Extension Service, will present information about their Master Gardeners
Program and the various volunteer projects completed over the past year.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the renaming of specified streets in
North Fayette County as a result of a request from the US Postal Service.
This item was last discussed at the March 4, 2009 Board of Commissioners
Workshop.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to renew the County’s contract with
Ceridian, the third party administrator for its Flexible Spending Plan
employee benefit.


3. Approval of a request from the Sheriff’s Department to amend the Overtime
Budget Account for the Criminal Investigations Division by $8,003.39 for
reimbursement of employees assigned to work with various Federal
agencies.


4. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to accept a Neighborhood
Stabilization Program (NSP) Grant from the Georgia Department of
Community Affairs.


5. Approval of staff’s request that the radio tower located on county-owned
property at 1464 Highway 92 North be declared surplus property and that
staff be authorized to sell the tower, which would be dismantled and
removed from the site.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award a bid to Mill Creek
Environmental Services for preparation of a Corrective Action Plan for the
Public Works fueling facility at a cost of $5,700.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept the proposal from Eco-South,
Inc. for Biological and Habitat Monitoring for the Lake McIntosh Reservoir
Project for 2009, in an amount not to exceed $28,098.


8. Approval of February 26, 2009 Board of Commissioners minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


B. Consideration of a recommendation from the Retirement Study Committee
to award the bid for managing the County’s employee deferred
compensation plan and the defined contribution retirement plan to Mass
Mutual/Am Ret.  This item was last discussed during the March 4, 2009
Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4thst Thursday each month at 7:00


 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 12, 2009
Page Number 2


NEW BUSINESS:  


C. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the bid for fencing at three mitigation sites
to the low bidder Trammell-Horton Contracting, Inc. at a combined cost of $176,343.90.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORT
BOARD REPORT
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Zip Code Committee, if needed Thursday, March 12, 2009


Approval of staff's recommendation for the renaming of specified streets in North Fayette County as a result of a request from the 


US Postal Service.


In response to many years of requests from neighborhoods in north Fayette County, the Postal Service has agreed to change the 


delivery of mail to areas lying within Fayette County historically served by the Fairburn and Riverdale Post Offices. Later in the year, 


the Fayetteville Post Office will begin deliver to approximately 2200 addresses in those areas. As a part of the change, the Postal 


Service has required Fayette County to change the name of nine streets that will become part of the 30214 zip code, because those 


nine street names or names very similar already exist in the 30214 area, which they do not allow. More importantly for Fayette 


County, however, is the confusion that duplicate and similar street names create for our 911 Center when responding to calls for 


help. Staff was asked to evaluate street names suggested by residents on the affected streets in hopes of being able to use them for 


new street names. A committee of staff members worked to develop the list of new names being recommended to the Board. 


Vote to change the names of nine streets in north Fayette County, in accordance with a requirement from the United States Postal 


Service. See attached memorandum for the list of recommended street names.


The only known cost will be for changing the street signs.


Yes Wednesday, March 4, 2009


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Following the change in these street names, the Postal Service will notify the 2200 addressees of their new addresses and 


provide their instructions on how to transition from the old address to the new address, etc. 









		Commissioners- Street Name Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Street Name Change Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Cooperative Extension Service Craig E. Gross


Craig Gross Thursday, March 12, 2009


Craig Gross, Cooperative Extension Coordinator for the Fayette County Extension Service, will present information about their 


Master Gardeners Program and the various volunteer projects completed over the past year.


The Master Gardener program is an intense training and certification of volunteers in several areas of horticulture. Once participants 


complete their initial training, they are required to volunteer and participate in educational programs and classes in order to keep 


their certification. All training and volunteering is under the direction of the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension. 


 


The Fayette County Master Gardeners have been volunteering their expertise and knowledge in Fayette County for over twenty 


years.  


 


In 2008, many of the members decided to form an association to help better organize their educational efforts. 


A brief overview of the Fayette County Master Gardener program and activities will be presented by Craig Gross. The Master 


Gardener Board of Directors will present the County Commissioners with their annual volunteer valuation. They would like a 


photograph with the Board of Commissioners.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		County Extension- Master Gardener Agenda Request File .pdf

		County Extension- Master Gardener Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey


Bill Lackey Wednesday, March 4, 2009


Approval of staff 's recommendation to award bid to Mill Creek Environmental Services for preparation of a Corrective Action Plan 


for the Public Works fueling facility at a cost of $5,700.00.


The County received a letter from GA EPD (Georgia Environmental Protection Division) on 06/01/2008 in regards to requirements 


for a Corrective Action Plan (CAP-Part A) after contaminated soil was encountered during excavation of the old underground 


storage tanks at Public Works.  The potential need for a CAP- Part A was identified earlier in the project; however, based on input 


from the project’s consultants (Mallett & Associates and Construction Material Services) staff determined it was prudent to complete 


the tank closure activities, submit the Tank Closure Report to EPD and await EPD's findings.  Since then, EPD has reviewed the Tank 


Closure Report and determined that a CAP-Part A is required.  


 


Six consulting firms submitted quotes for preparation of this Corrective Action Plan.


Award bid to Mill Creek Environmental Services in the amount of $5,700.00 to prepare a Corrective Action Plan and allocate funding 


from the County's Contingency Account to cover expenses related to the CAP-Part A, since this cost was not anticipated prior to 


adoption of the department's current FY 09 Budget.


The cost Mill Creek Environmental would charge for preparing the Corrective Action Plan is $5,700.00. If soil/water remediation or 


further monitoring is required the cost could be significantly higher. However, it is our understanding that the County would be 


reimbursed for any costs exceeding $10,000.00 through the Georgia Underground Storage Tank Trust Fund.


No


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		Fleet Maintenance- Mill Creek Agenda Request File .pdf

		Fleet Maintenance- Mill Creek Backup

		Fleet Maintenance- Backup 1.pdf

		Fleet Maintenance- Backup 2

		Fleet Maintenance- Backup 3

		Sheet1














COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Lori Smith Thursday, March 12, 2009


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew the County's contract  with Ceridian, the third party administrator for its Flexible 


Spending Plan employee benefit.


The BOC approved the addition of a Flexible Spending Plan for Fayette County employees for fiscal year 2009.  As a part of the 


benefits package, this elective plan allows employees to set aside pre-tax money from each paycheck to use toward eligible health 


care or child care expenses during the plan year.  The employees realize savings by avoiding taxes on this money which can be used 


to cover items such as co-pays for doctor visits and prescription medicine as well as for certifiable childcare expenses.  The County 


benefits as well by paying less FICA taxes because the pre-tax deductions reduce the employee's taxable income. 


 


There are currently 88 employees participating in the medical portion and six employees participating in the dependant care 


portion.  This benefit is administered through an annual contract with Ceridian which is now up for renewal.  There is a $120 


renewal fee. 


Approval to renew the annual contract with the third party administrator, Ceridian for the employee Flexible Spending Plan benefit. 


There are no changes to the contract.


A $120 fee is required to renew the contract.


Yes Wednesday, January 2, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Allen McCullough Thursday, March 12, 2009


Consideration of recommendation from the Retirement Study Committee to award the bid for managing the County's employee 


deferred compensation plan and the defined contribution retirement plan to Mass Mutual/Am Ret.


In August, 2006, the Board of Commissioners asked the County Administrator to establish a committee to review the County's 


existing employee retirement plan benefit. The Committee has met regularly to evaluate the existing plan and to develop a 


recommendation for amendments/improvements to the benefit. At this time, the Committee has made a recommendation for a 


vendor for managing the County's employee deferred compensation plan and the defined contribution retirement plan elements.  


The recommendation was made to the Board at its March 4 Workshop to award the bid to Mass Mutual/Am Ret. 


 


(The Committee is continuing to prepare to make a recommendation to the Board for a vendor for a defined benefit plan element, 


which was approved to add by the Board on December 5, 2007.) 


The recommendation of the Retirement Committee is ready for action by the Board of Commissioners. The recommendation of the 


Committee is to award a contract for management of the county's employee deferred compensation and defined contribution 


retirement services to Mass Mutual/Am Ret.  The effective date will be established when a vendor for the defined benefit plan 


element is selected so that all changes for employees in the retirement benefit can be made at one time.


No funding is required for this request.


Yes Wednesday, March 4, 2009


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
To:  Board of Commissioners 


 Jack Krakeel, County Administrator 
 


From: Retirement Study Committee: Allen McCullough, Connie Boehnke, Linda Jones, Mary Holland, Toni Jo 
  Howard, Lewis Patterson, Lori Smith, Pete Frisina, and Tony Parrott 


Date: March 3, 2009 
 
Subject: Defined Contribution and Deferred Compensation Vendor Recommendation 
 
It is the unanimous recommendation of the Fayette County Retirement Study Committee to award the bid for the 
Defined Contribution and Deferred Compensation Retirement Plans to Mass Mutual/AmRet.  In an objective review 
of the various vendors who responded to the Request for Proposal, Mass Mutual/AmRet ranked the highest based on 
the following criteria: quality of investment offerings, knowledge, experience and depth of proposing firm, fees and 
expenses, customer service and vendor stability. 
 
Mass Mutual has access to a wide array of funds, firms and quality managers to oversee and proactively manage 
investments.  The company has been managing investments for over 160 years, giving it the knowledge and 
experience to effectively provide a high level of expertise to the employees of Fayette County in helping them 
achieve their retirement goals.  It was determined that Mass Mutual/AmRet provided overall superior returns with no 
hidden or additional administrative fees and would be the provider most suited to manage the 401(a) and 457 
accounts for Fayette County employees.  Reference checks from other governmental providers have demonstrated a 
strong show of support and confidence in Mass Mutual, as their preferred provider for their defined contribution and 
deferred compensation plan, citing among other things their quality level of customer service through their 
partnership with AmRet.  During these turbulent economic times, Mass Mutual has been able to maintain their AAA 
credit rating and has not, and is not projected in the future, to receive any federal bailout monies in order to maintain 
financial stability.     
    
The committee believes that the services offered by Mass Mutual/AmRet will best serve both the employees and 
Fayette County Government for the future.  Mass Mutual/AmRet does not charge surrender fees and thus avoids 
future penalties with any future changes which could negatively impact employees.  Mass Mutual is owned by the 
customer and is not in a situation of having to report to share holders.  They have committed to a zero blackout 
period for fund transitions.  Mass Mutual is willing to invest considerable time and effort in employee education at 
no additional cost and will work to achieve a target date portfolio plan for each employee.  In addition, Mass Mutual 
offers full indemnity to the county for administrative and management functions through a fiduciary warranty which 
is part of their comprehensive package at no additional cost.   
 
In summary, based upon extensive objective review, reference checks and interviews with various providers the 
Retirement Study Committee recommends Mass Mutual/AmRet as the preferred Defined Contribution and Deferred 
Compensation Retirement Plans provider for the Fayette County Retirement Program.  Thank you for your patience 
in allowing the committee the necessary time to methodically analyze and critically evaluate the tremendous volume 
of information which was presented to us in this important process which provides an essential benefit for our 
county employee workforce.          





		Human Resources- Retirement Committee Agenda Request File-a.pdf

		Human Resources- Retirement Committee Backup

		Human Resources- Backup 1-a.pdf

		Human Resources- Backup 2












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev Peter A. Frisina


Pete Frisina/Tom Williams Thursday, March 12, 2009


Approval of staff's request for authorization to accept a Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) Grant from the Georgia 


Department of Community Affairs.


On January 14, 2009, the BOC approved the submission of an application for a NSP Grant for a down payment assistance program to 


provide incentives for purchasing houses under foreclosure.  The application was submitted on January 15, 2009.  A Grant offer from 


Georgia DCA is anticipated by March 6, 2009.  DCA has notified applicants that local acceptance is expected within 15 days of the 


award announcement.  The attached Resolution authorizes the acceptance of the grant award by Fayette County should Fayette 


County's application be approved.


Approval of the Resolution 2009-06 authorizing acceptance of the NSP Grant if Fayette County's application should be approved.


The Grant will require Staff time for administration; however, approximately $70,000 will be available from the $1.18 million Grant 


for administrative costs.  The grant does not require matching funds.


Yes Wednesday, January 14, 2009


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







THE STATE OF GEORGIA; 
THE COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2009 - 06 


 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ACCEPTANCE OF A  


NEIGHBORHOOD STABLIZATION PROGRAM GRANT FROM THE 
GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 


 
WHEREAS, on January 14, 2009, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


authorized the submission of an application for a grant from the Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program; and 
 


WHEREAS, the application was subsequently submitted on January 15, 2009, to the 
Georgia Department of Community Affairs; and 
 


WHEREAS, notification of an offer for said grant from the Georgia Department of 
Community Affairs is anticipated to be forthcoming on or before March 6, 2009; and  
 


WHEREAS, said Department of Community Affairs has notified applicants that upon 
notice that a grant offer is forthcoming, a confirmation of acceptance from the applicant is 
expected within 15 days of the announcement;  
 


THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, 
Georgia, that it is the intent of this body to accept a grant from the Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program on behalf of Fayette County, if Fayette County receives notification that its application 
has been approved and an offer of a grant is forthcoming. 
 
 So resolved this 12th day of March, 2009 by the 
 
            
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
       
 
      __________________________ 
      Jack R. Smith, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Carol Chandler, County Clerk 





		Planning and Zoning-DCA Grant Agenda Request-a.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- DCA Grant Agenda Request with Backup

		Planning and Zoning- DCA Grant Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- DCA Grant Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Department / Public Works Phil Mallon


Carlos Christian March 12, 2009


Approval of staff's request that the radio tower located on county-owned property at 1464 Highway 92 be declared surplus 


property and that staff be authorized to sell the tower, which would be dismantled and removed from the site.


Fayette County purchased property located at 1464 Highway 92 North, directly across from where Westbridge Road intersects with 


Hwy. 92.   This property is the ending point of the West Fayetteville Bypass - Phase II Project.   The existing building and 


infrastructure on the site were recently demolished by county forces.   An older version truss-fabricated radio tower with a guy wire 


anchoring system still remains.   Strong interest has been expressed from various parties in acquiring the radio tower.   Staff has 


inquired of Fire & EMS and 911 to ensure there are no internal needs for the tower.   Since county departments have no interest or 


need of the radio tower, we are requesting permission to have the Purchasing Department sell the structure to the highest bidder.    


Proceeds from this sale would go back into the SPLOST road funds.


Authorization to have the Purchasing Department sell the radio tower. The tower would be dismantled and removed from the site.


No funding is required for this request.


No N/A


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes Yes


Yes







                           
Approximately 80’+ tall radio tower on Fayette County Property at 
intersection of Westbridge Road & SR92. 


 
 


                           
Distant shot of Radio Tower with one(1) of the three guy wire anchor- 
ing locations. 
 
 


               
Picture of Radio Tower bottom portion standing at one of the guy wire 
anchors. 







                        
      Picture of top portion of Radio Tower. 


 
 


                        
                     Close-up picture of one(1) of the gut wire Anchoring Systems. 
 
 
 
                        


 





		Public Works- Radio Tower Agenda Requst File-a.pdf

		Public Works- Radio Tower Agenda Request with Backup

		Public Works- Radio Tower Agenda Requst File.pdf

		Public Works- Radio Tower Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Sheriff's Office Sheriff Wayne Hannah


Captain Michelle Walker, if needed Thursday, March 12, 2009


Approval of request from Sheriff's Department to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal Investigations Division by 


$8,003.39 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigation Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from 


various federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office 


Criminal Investigation Division (10030321-511300) by $8,003.39 which has been received from various federal programs for the 


2008-2009 Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $139,423.36.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott Thursday, March 12, 2009


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the proposal from Eco-South, Inc. for Biological and Habitat Monitoring for the Lake 


McIntosh Reservoir Project for 2009, in an amount not to exceed $28,098.00.


The Army Corps of Engineers requires as part of the 404 permit that certain biological data be collected on Line Creek below the 


dam site for the Lake McIntosh Reservoir.   This work is a continuation of work Eco-South performed last year.  The cost of the work 


should not exceed $28,098.00. If unforeseen issues arise, the Board of Commissioners will need to give approval for further work or 


the expenditure of funds exceeding the estimate. 


Approval to accept the proposal for Biological and Habitat Monitoring from Eco-South, Inc. A contract will follow.


Lake McIntosh Reservoir and Revenue and Extension Funds.


No


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes Yes


Yes













		Water System- Eco-South Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Eco-South Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott Thursday, March 12, 2009


Consideration of Water Committee's recommendation to award the bid for fencing at three mitigation sites to the low bidder 


Trammell-Horton Contracting, Inc. at a combined cost of $176,343.90.


As part of the Lake McIntosh Reservoir Project,  mitigation sites must be established and maintained.  Installing fencing will protect 


these areas from cows and other animals, and four wheelers and other vehicles trespassing on these sites which may damage any 


plantings that  have been installed. 


 


Bids were received from five vendors.


Approval to award the fencing at three mitigation sites to Trammell-Horton Contracting for $176,343.90. A contract will be prepared 


and presented for approval at a future meeting.


Water System Lake McIntosh funds and Revenue and Extension funds.


No


No


Yes Thursday, March 12, 2009


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		Water System- Mitigation Site Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- Mitigation Site Backup







